



Registration of a Charge

Company Name: OLD HOUSE RENTALS LIMITED Company Number: 13502449

Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: 23/12/2021

Details of Charge

- Date of creation: **15/12/2021**
- Charge code: **1350 2449 0001**
- Persons entitled: AUTARKY CAPITAL LIMITED
- Brief description: FLAT 459A, PARK WEST, EDGWARE ROAD, LONDON W2 2QU TITLE NUMBER: NGL483988

Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or undertaking of the company).

Contains negative pledge.

Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: FLAHIVE LAW

Electronically filed document for Company Number:



XAJY58C0

13502449



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 13502449

Charge code: 1350 2449 0001

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 15th December 2021 and created by OLD HOUSE RENTALS LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 23rd December 2021.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 30th December 2021

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





This is an important document. You should take independent legal advice before signing and sign only if you want to be legally bound. If you sign and the Lender is not paid, you may lose the assets charged. In the case of registered land, this document and any priority agreement with another lender will be a public document.

Debenture

Dated

,

. •

Old House Rentals Limited (1) (2)

15/12/2021

Autarky Capital Limited

FLAMPER AND LIMITED 63AA YROAD WILMSL' / CHESHIRE SIG: INZ

M. POTCE

I CERTIFY THIS TO BE A TRUE COPY OF THE ORIGINAL.

20 Gresham Street London EC2V 7JE T +44 (0)333 006 0300 F +44 (0)333 006 0311 DX 431 London Chancery Lane

www.TLTsolicitors.com 304F/RK15/[CLIENT]/[MATTER NUMBER]/66896119.3

Contents

5 1 1 1 F 1

Clauses

1	Definitions and interpretation	. 1
2	Creation of Security	1
3	Representations - general	3
4	Restrictions on dealings	. U
5	Land	. U Б
6	Appointment of an Administrator	.9
7	When Security becomes enforceable	ģ
8	Enforcement of Security	10
9	Receiver	10
10	Powers of Receiver	11
11	Application of proceeds	12
12	Delegation	13
13	Further assurances	13
14	Power of Attorney	13
15	Preservation of Security	14
16	Miscellaneous	14
17	Release	11
18	Notices	1/
19	Governing law and jurisdiction	15
		ιJ.

Schedules

1	Real Property	16
2	Definitions and interpretation	17

i

.

This deed is made on

15/12/21

Between:

- (1) Old House Rentals Limited (company number 13502449) whose registered office is Mar House, 50 The Hyde, Edgware Road, London, NW9 5NG (the Borrower); in favour of
- (2) Autarky Capital Limited (company number 13397969) whose registered office is at 19a Chorley Old Road, Bolton, BL1 3AD (the Lender).

Background:

- (A) The Borrower enters into this Deed in connection with the Facility Agreement (as defined in Schedule 2 (Definitions and interpretation) to this Deed).
- (B) It is intended that this document takes effect as a deed notwithstanding the fact that the Borrower may only execute this document under hand.

Terms

1 Definitions and interpretation

This Deed shall be interpreted in accordance with paragraphs 1 (Definitions), 2 (Construction) and 3 (Third party rights) of Schedule 2 (Definitions and interpretation).

2 Creation of Security

2.1 General

- 2.1.1 The Borrower shall pay or discharge the Secured Liabilities in the manner provided for in the Finance Documents.
- 2.1.2 All the security created under this Deed is:
- (a) created in favour of the Lender;
- (b) created over present and future assets of the Borrower;
- (c) security for the payment of all the Secured Liabilities; and
- (d) made with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994.

2.2 Land

- 2.2.1 The Borrower charges:
- (a) by way of legal mortgage all estates or interests in any Property now owned by it; this includes the real property (if any) specified in Schedule 1 (Real Property);
- (b) (to the extent that they are not the subject of a legal mortgage under paragraph
 (a) above) by way of fixed charge all estates or interests in any Property now or subsequently owned by it; and
- (c) by way of equitable mortgage all equitable interests in any Property now or subsequently owned by it which now or may in the future belong to the Borrower (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the right to receive a transfer, or to direct the transfer, of any shares or membership rights which the Borrower holds in any company or association connected with the Property).
- 2.2.2 A reference in this Clause 2 to a charge of any Property includes:

(a) all buildings, fixtures, fittings and fixed plant and machinery on that Property; and

- (b) the benefit of any covenants for title given or entered into by any predecessor in title of the Borrower in respect of that Property or any moneys paid or payable in respect of those covenants.
- 2.2.3 The Borrower authorises the Lender to:
- (a) date this Deed;
- (b) correct any wrongly completed name or address; and/or
- (c) insert or correct the title number of any Charged Property against its description, in each case for the purpose of identifying that Charged Property and/or the registration of this Deed as a registered charge.

2.3 Other assets

The Borrower charges by way of a first fixed charge:

- 2.3.1 its interest in all Investments;
- 2.3.2 to the extent that they are not the subject of a mortgage or a first fixed charge under a Legal Charge or Clause 2.2 (Land), all plant and machinery owned by the Borrower and its interest in any plant or machinery in its possession;
- 2.3.3 all of its rights in respect of any contract or policy of insurance taken out by it or on its behalf or in which it has an interest but excluding any rights under any liability insurance contract or policy in respect of liabilities of the Borrower to third parties;
- 2.3.4 all of its Intellectual Property Rights;
- 2.3.5 its goodwill (including, without limitation, the goodwill relating to any business carried on by it at any Property);
- 2.3.6 the benefit of any Authorisation (statutory or otherwise) held in connection with its use of any Security Asset;
- 2.3.7 the right to recover and receive compensation which may be payable to it in respect of any Authorisation referred to in paragraph 2.3.6 above;
- 2.3.8 its uncalled capital;
- 2.3.9 all monies from time to time standing to the credit of its accounts with any bank, financial institution or other person, together with all other rights and benefits accruing to or arising in connection with each account (including, but not limited to, entitlements to interest);
- 2.3.10 all of its rights in respect of each contract or policy of insurance taken out by it or on its behalf or in which it has an interest, including all claims, the proceeds of all claims and all returns of premiums in connection with each such contract or policy, to the extent not effectively assigned under this Clause 2;
- 2.3.11 all of its rights in respect of each and all other agreements, instruments and rights relating to any Security Assets, to the extent not effectively assigned under Clause 2;
- 2.3.12 all Rental Income;
- 2.3.13 all its rights in respect of each Relevant Agreement and all other agreements, instruments and rights relating to the Security Assets to the extent not effectively assigned under clause 2.5; and

66896119.3

2.3.14 the benefit of all rights in relation to any item in paragraphs 2.3.5 to 2.3.13 above.

2.4 Floating charge

- 2.4.1 The Borrower charges by way of a first floating charge all of its assets not otherwise effectively mortgaged, charged or assigned under a Legal Charge or by way of fixed mortgage, charge or assignment under this Clause 2.
- 2.4.2 Except as provided below, the Lender may by notice to the Borrower convert the floating charge created by this Clause 2.4 into a fixed charge as regards any of the Borrower's assets specified in that notice, if:
- (a) an Event of Default is continuing; or
- (b) the Lender considers those assets to be in danger of being seized or sold under any form of distress, attachment, execution or other legal process or to be otherwise in jeopardy.
- 2.4.3 The floating charge created by this Clause 2.4 may not be converted into a fixed charge solely by reason of:
- (a) the obtaining of a moratorium; or
- (b) anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium, under section 1A of the Insolvency Act 1986.
- 2.4.4 The floating charge created by this Clause 2.4 shall (in addition to the circumstances when this may occur under the general law) automatically convert into a fixed charge over all of the Borrower's assets if an administrator is appointed, or the Lender receives notice of an intention to appoint an administrator, in respect of the Borrower.
- 2.4.5 The floating charge created by this Clause 2.4 is a qualifying floating charge for the purpose of paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986.

2.5 Assignment

- 2.5.1 As a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities, the Borrower with full title guarantee assigns to the Lender absolutely, subject to a proviso for reassignment on irrevocable discharge in full of the Secured Liabilities:
- (a) all its rights in each contract or policy of insurance taken out by it or on its behalf or in which it has an interest, including all claims, the proceeds of all claims and all returns of premiums in connection with each such contract or policy;
- (b) the benefit of all other agreements, instruments and rights relating to the Security Assets; and
- (c) the benefit of each Relevant Agreement and the benefit of all other agreements, instruments and rights relating to the Security Assets.

3 Representations - general

- 3.1 The Borrower makes the representations and warranties set out in this Clause 3.
 - 3.1.1 It is a limited liability corporation, duly incorporated and validly existing under the law of its jurisdiction of incorporation.
 - 3.1.2 It and each of its Subsidiaries has the power to own its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted.

- 3.2 The obligations expressed to be assumed by it in each Finance Document are legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations.
- 3.3 The entry into and performance by it off, and the transactions contemplated by, the Finance Documents do not and will not conflict with:
 - 3.3.1 any law or regulation applicable to it;
 - 3.3.2 its or any of its Subsidiaries' constitutional documents;
 - 3.3.3 any Relevant Agreement; or
 - 3.3.4 any agreement or instrument binding upon it or any of its Subsidiaries or any of its or any of its Subsidiaries' assets.
- 3.4 It has the power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action to authorise its entry into, performance and delivery of, the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the transactions contemplated by those Finance Documents.
- 3.5 All Authorisations required or desirable:
 - 3.5.1 to enable it lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights and comply with its obligations in the Finance Documents to which it is a party; and
 - 3.5.2 to make the Finance Documents to which it is a party admissible in evidence in its jurisdiction of incorporation, have been obtained or effected and are in full force and effect.
- 3.6 The choice of governing law of the Finance Documents will be recognised and enforced in its jurisdiction of incorporation.
- 3.7 Any judgment obtained in relation to a Finance Document in the jurisdiction of the governing law of that Finance Document will be recognised and enforced in its jurisdiction of incorporation.
- 3.8 This Deed creates the Security it purports to create and is not liable to be avoided or otherwise set aside on the liquidation or administration of the Borrower or otherwise.
- 3.9 No Event of Default has occurred or is continuing, or is likely to result from the entry into, the performance of, or any transaction contemplated by this Deed.
- 3.10 The Borrower is the sole legal and beneficial owner of and has good, valid and marketable title to, the Security Assets and the Charged Property (including the Property).
- 3.11 Except as expressly allowed under the Facility Agreement or this Deed, the Security Assets are free from any Security.
- 3.12 The Borrower has not received, or acknowledged notice of, any adverse claim by any person in respect of the Security Assets or any interest in them.
- 3.13 There are no covenants, agreements, reservations, conditions, interests, rights or other matters whatsoever that materially and adversely affect the Security Assets.
- 3.14 There is no breach of any law or regulation that materially and adversely affects the Security Assets.
- 3.15 No facility necessary for the enjoyment and use of the Security Assets is subject to terms entitling any person to terminate or curtail its use.
- 3.16 Nothing has arisen, has been created or is subsisting, that would be an overriding interest in any Charged Property.

66896119,3

- 3.17 No Security expressed to be created under this Deed is liable to be avoided, or otherwise set aside, on the liquidation or administration of the Borrower or otherwise.
- 3.18 There is no prohibition on assignment by the Borrower of any of its rights in any insurance policy or any other agreement or any Relevant Agreement, and the entry into this deed by the Borrower does not, and will not, constitute a breach of any insurance policy, relevant agreement or any Relevant Agreement or any other policy, agreement, document, instrument or obligation binding on the Borrower or its assets.
- 3.19 The Borrower has, at all times, complied in all material respects with all applicable environmental law and environmental licences.
- 3.20 This Deed constitutes and will constitute the legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the Borrower, and is and will continue to be effective security over all and every part of the Security Assets in accordance with its terms.
- 3.21 The Investments are fully paid and are not subject to any option to purchase or similar rights.
- 3.22 No constitutional document of an issuer of an Investment, nor any other agreement: (i) restricts or inhibits any transfer of the Investments on creation or enforcement of the security constituted by this deed; or (ii) contains any rights of pre-emption in relation to the Investments.
- 3.23 The Borrower has complied with all notices relating to all or any of the Investments received by it pursuant to sections 790D and 790E of the Companies Act 2006.
- 3.24 No warning notice has been issued under paragraph 1(2) of Schedule 1B of the Companies Act 2006, and no restrictions notice has been issued under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule 1B of the Companies Act 2006, in respect of all or any of the Investments.
- 3.25 The representations and warranties in this Deed (including in this Clause 3) are made by the Borrower on the date of this Deed and are deemed to be repeated on each day of the Security Period with reference to the facts and circumstances existing at the time of repetition.

4 Restrictions on dealings

The Borrower shall not:

- 4.1 Create or permit to subsist any Security over any Security Asset;
- 4.2 Enter into any transaction to sell, lease, licence, transfer or otherwise dispose, or part with possession, of all or part of any Security Asset; or
- 4.3 Accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy or confer upon any person any right to occupy a Charged Property, except with the prior written consent of the Lender.

5 Land

- 5.1 The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender that (except as disclosed to the Lender in writing before the date of this Deed):
 - 5.1.1 no breach of any law, regulation or covenant is continuing which adversely affects the value, saleability or use of the Charged Property;
 - 5.1.2 there is no covenant, agreement, stipulation, reservation, condition, interest, right, easement, claim or other matter whatsoever adversely affecting the Charged Property;
 - 5.1.3 nothing is outstanding which would be an overriding interest, or an unregistered interest which overrides first registration or registered dispositions, over the Charged Property; and

5.1.4 all facilities necessary for the enjoyment and use of the Charged Property are enjoyed by the Charged Property. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

- 5.2 The Borrower shall:
 - 5.2.1 exercise its rights and comply with its obligations under each lease comprised in, or covenants in respect of, the Charged Property in a proper and timely manner; and
 - 5.2.2 not do or allow to be done any act as a result of which any lease comprised in the Charged Property may become liable to forfeiture or otherwise be terminated or any covenant in respect of the Charged Property be breached.
- 5.3 The Borrower shall ensure that all buildings, plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings on the Charged Property are maintained in good and substantial repair and condition and, as appropriate, good working order.
- 5.4 The Borrower shall perform all of its obligations under any law or regulation affecting the Charged Property and, within 14 days after the receipt by it of any application, requirement, order or notice served or given by any public, local or other authority with respect to the Charged Property (or any part of it):
 - 5.4.1 deliver a copy to the Lender; and
 - 5.4.2 inform the Lender of the steps taken or proposed to be taken to comply with the relevant requirement, order or notice.
- 5.5 The Borrower shall grant the Lender or its lawyers on request all facilities within the power of the Borrower to enable the Lender or its lawyers (at the expense of the Borrower) to:
 - 5.5.1 carry out investigations of title to the Charged Property; and
 - 5.5.2 make such enquiries in relation to any part of the Charged Property as a prudent chargee might carry out.
- 5.6 If the Borrower fails to perform any obligations under the Finance Documents which affect the Charged Property, it shall allow the Lender or any of its agents and contractors to:
 - 5.6.1 enter any part of the Charged Property:
 - 5.6.2 comply with or object to any notice served on the Borrower in respect of the Charged Property; and
 - 5.6.3 take any action the Lender may reasonably consider necessary or desirable to prevent or remedy any breach of any such obligation or comply with or object to any such notice.
- 5.7 The Borrower shall, immediately on demand, pay the costs and expenses of the Lender and its agents and contractors incurred in connection with any action taken by it under this Clause 5.
- 5.8 The Lender is not obliged to account as mortgagee in possession as a result of any action taken under this Clause 5.
- 5.9 The Borrower shall ensure at all times contracts of insurance (Insurances) are maintained in full force and effect which:
 - 5.9.1 insure the Borrower's interests in the Charged Property and the plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings on the Charged Property for their full replacement value (being the total cost of entirely rebuilding, reinstating or replacing the relevant asset if it is completely destroyed, together with all related fees and demolition costs);

- 5.9.2 provide cover for all normally insurable risks of loss or damage for such a property;
- 5.9.3 insure against public liability and such other risks as a prudent company in the same business as the Borrower would insure; and
- 5.9.4 insure any other risks which the Lender may reasonably require,

and any such insurance must be with an insurance company or underwriters, and on such terms, as are reasonably acceptable to the Lender, and must be for not less than the replacement value of the relevant Charged Property.

5.10 The Borrower shall, if requested by the Lender:

- 5.10.1 produce to the Lender each policy, certificate or cover note relating to the insurance required by Clause 5.9 and the receipt for the payment of any premium for any such Insurance and any related information which the Lender may reasonably require (or where, in the case of any leasehold property, that insurance is effected by the landlord, such evidence of insurance as the Borrower is entitled to obtain from the landlord under the terms of the relevant lease); and
- 5.10.2 procure that a note of the Lender's interest: (i) as composite insured in respect of its own separate insurable interest under each policy (except in relation to public liability and third party liability insurance); and (ii) first loss payee (other than in respect of any claim under any public liability and third party liability insurances) is endorsed upon each insurance policy maintained by it or any person on its behalf in accordance with this Clause 5 and that the terms of each such insurance policy require the insurer not to invalidate the policy as against the Lender by reason of the act or default of any other joint or named insured and not to cancel it without giving at least 30 days' prior written notice to the Lender.
- 5.11 The Borrower shall:
 - 5.11.1 comply with the terms of its Insurances;
 - 5.11.2 not do or permit anything to be done which may make void or voidable any such Insurances;
 - 5.11.3 comply with all reasonable risk improvement requirements of its insurers;
 - 5.11.4 pay each premium promptly and in any event before the relevant period of insurance begins; and (v) do all other things necessary to keep such insurances in force.
- 5.12 If the Borrower fails to insure (or keep insured) the Charged Property and/or the plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings on the Charged Property to the satisfaction of the Lender, the Lender may insure any of them and the Borrower shall be liable for the costs of such insurance (including an administration fee covering the Lender's time spent in arranging it). The Borrower hereby acknowledges that any insurance effected by the Lender is for the Lender's benefit only and may by cancelled by the Lender at any time without giving notice to the Borrower.
- 5.13 All amounts received or receivable under any Insurance shall be applied: (i) in replacing, restoring or reinstating the Charged Property or in any other manner which the Lender may agree; or (ii) after an Event of Default has occurred, if the Lender so directs, in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Liabilities.
- 5.14 The Borrower shall permit the Lender and any person nominated by it at all reasonable times to enter any part of the Charged Property and view the state of it.
- 5.15 If the Borrower acquires any Property after the date of this Deed it shall:

- 5.15.1 notify the Lender immediately;
- 5.15.2 on request by the Lender and at the cost of the Borrower:
- (a) provide the Lender with a certificate of or report on title on property addressed to the Lender concerning those items which may properly be sought to be covered by a prudent mortgagee in a lawyer's report of this nature; and
- (b) promptly execute and deliver to the Lender a Legal Charge over that property in the Lender's standard form;
- 5.15.3 if the title to that freehold or leasehold property is registered at HM Land Registry or required to be so registered, give HM Land Registry written notice of this Security; and
- 5.15.4 if applicable, ensure that this Security is correctly noted in the Register of Title against that title at HM Land Registry.
- 5.16 If the consent of the landlord in whom the reversion of a lease is vested is required for the Borrower to execute a legal mortgage over that lease, the Borrower will not be required to perform that obligation unless and until it has obtained the landlord's consent. The Borrower shall use its reasonable endeavours to obtain the landlord's consent.
- 5.17 The Borrower consents to a restriction in the following terms being entered on the Register of Title relating to any Property registered at HM Land Registry:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [•] in favour of Autarky Capital Limited referred to in the charges register (or their conveyancer) or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its conveyancer (Standard Form P)."

5.18 To the extent this Security fails to take effect as a legal charge, it shall take effect as an equitable charge, in which case the Borrower:

(i) consents to a notice in the following terms being entered on the Register of Title relating to any Property registered at HM Land Registry:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a written consent signed by Autarky Capital Limited of (or [their conveyancer]) (Standard Form N)."

and

(ii) authorises the Lender to sign any application for the registration of that notice on behalf of the Borrower.

- 5.19 Where this Security is not a first mortgage, the Borrower shall comply with the terms and conditions of its first mortgage on the Property and use its best endeavours to obtain the consent of the first mortgagee to the registration of this Security at the Land Registry.
- 5.20 The Borrower shall only commence building works on the Property with the prior written consent of the Lender.
- 5.21 Where the Property is subject to an application for planning permission, the Borrower shall:
 - 5.21.1 develop the Property in compliance with the relevant planning permission;
 - 5.21.2 notify the Lender regularly (at intervals to be confirmed at the Lender's discretion) of progress with the relevant building works (the Works) and disclose to the Lender all related contracts, notices and planning information;

- 5.21.3 notify the Lender in writing at least 12 months before (or, if less than 12 months remain, as soon as possible) the deadline for commencing the Works under any relevant planning permission;
- 5.21.4 procure warranties for the Works in favour of the Lender in a form acceptable to the Lender;
- 5.21.5 for any third party contract associated with the Works, procure that the Lender has appropriate step in rights in a form acceptable to the Lender;
- 5.21.6 comply with the Lender's directions regarding the Works and comply with the Lender's surveyor in his/her review of the Works (and the Borrower hereby agrees that the Lender's surveyor's fees for this review are for the account of the Borrower); and
- 5.21.7 indemnify the Lender for all costs associated with the Works and related planning/development matters.
- 5.22 The Borrower shall, unless the Lender agrees otherwise in writing, comply with the terms of each Relevant Agreement and any other document, agreement or arrangement comprising the Security Assets.
- 5.23 The Borrower shall not, unless the Lender agrees otherwise in writing:
 - 5.23.1 amend or vary or agree to any change in, or waive any requirement of or its rights under:
 - 5.23.2 settle, compromise, terminate, rescind or discharge (except by performance); or
 - 5.23.3 abandon, waive, dismiss, release or discharge any action, claim or proceedings against any counterparty to a Relevant Agreement or other person in connection with,

any Relevant Agreement or any other document, agreement or arrangement comprising the Security Assets.

6 Appointment of an Administrator

а – Э _ с. с. Э

- 6.1.1 The Lender may, without notice to the Borrower, appoint any one or more persons to be an Administrator of the Borrower pursuant to Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 of the Insolvency Act 1986 if the security constituted by this Deed becomes enforceable.
- 6.1.2 Any appointment under this Clause 6 shall:
- (a) be in writing signed by a duly authorised signatory of the Lender; and
- (b) take effect in accordance with paragraph 19 of Schedule B1 of the Insolvency Act 1986.
- 6.1.3 The Lender may apply to the court for an order removing an Administrator from office and may by notice in writing in accordance with this Clause 6 appoint a replacement for any Administrator who has died, resigned, been removed or who has vacated office upon ceasing to be qualified.

7 When Security becomes enforceable

7.1 This Security shall become immediately enforceable if an Event of Default occurs and is continuing.

- 7.2 After this Security has become enforceable, the Lender may enforce all or any part of this Security in any manner it sees fit.
- 7.3 The power of sale and other powers conferred by section 101 of the Act, as amended by this Deed, shall be immediately exercisable at any time after this Security has become enforceable.

8 Enforcement of Security

- 8.1 For the purposes of all powers implied by statute, the Secured Liabilities are deemed to have become due and payable on the date of this Deed.
- 8.2 Section 103 of the Act (restricting the power of sale) and section 93 of the Act (restricting the right of consolidation) do not apply to this Security.
- 8.3 The statutory powers of leasing conferred on the Lender are extended so as to authorise the Lender to lease, make agreements for leases, accept surrenders of leases and grant options as the Lender may think fit and without the need to comply with any provision of section 99 or section 100 of the Act.
- 8.4 Neither the Lender nor any Receiver shall be liable, by reason of entering into possession of a Security Asset, to account as mortgagee in possession or for any loss on realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable.
- 8.5 The Lender and each Receiver is entitled to all the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the Act on mortgagees and receivers duly appointed under the Act, except that section 103 of the Act does not apply.
- 8.6 No person (including a purchaser) dealing with the Lender or a Receiver or their agents need enquire:
 - 8.6.1 whether the Secured Liabilities have become payable;
 - 8.6.2 whether any power which the Lender or a Receiver is purporting to exercise has become exercisable or is being properly exercised;
 - 8.6.3 whether any money remains due under the Finance Documents; or
 - 8.6.4 how any money paid to the Lender or to that Receiver is to be applied.
- 8.7 At any time after this Security has become enforceable, the Lender may:
 - 8.7.1 redeem any prior Security against any Security Asset;
 - 8.7.2 procure the transfer of that Security to itself; and/or
 - 8.7.3 settle and pass the accounts of the prior mortgagee, chargee or encumbrancer (and any accounts so settled and passed will be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on the Borrower).
- 8.8 The Borrower shall pay to the Lender, immediately on demand, the costs and expenses incurred by the Lender in connection with any such redemption and/or transfer, including the payment of any principal or interest.
- 8.9 If this Security is enforced at a time when no amount is due under the Finance Documents but at a time when amounts may or will become due, the Lender (or a Receiver) may pay the proceeds of any recoveries effected by it into a suspense account or other account selected by it.

9 Receiver

66896119.3

- 9.1 Except as provided below, the Lender may appoint any one or more persons to be a Receiver of all or any part of the Security Assets if:
 - 9.1.1 this Security has become enforceable; or
 - 9.1.2 the Borrower so requests the Lender in writing at any time.
- 9.2 Any appointment under paragraph 9.1 above shall be by deed, under seal or in writing under its hand.
- 9.3 Except as provided below, any restriction imposed by law on the right of a mortgagee to appoint a Receiver (including under section 109(1) of the Act) does not apply to this Deed.
- 9.4 The Lender is not entitled to appoint a Receiver solely as a result of the obtaining of a moratorium (or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium) under section IA of the Insolvency Act 1986.
- 9.5 The Lender may by writing under its hand remove any Receiver appointed by it and may, whenever it thinks fit, appoint a new Receiver in the place of any Receiver whose appointment may for any reason have terminated.
- 9.6 The Lender may fix the remuneration of any Receiver appointed by it and the maximum rate specified in section 109 (6) of the Act shall not apply.
- 9.7 A Receiver will be deemed to be the agent of the Borrower for all purposes and accordingly will be deemed to be in the same position as a Receiver duly appointed by a mortgagee under the Act. The Borrower shall be responsible for any contracts, engagements, acts, omissions, defaults and losses of a Receiver and for any liabilities incurred by a Receiver.
- 9.8 The Lender shall not incur any liability (either to the Borrower or to any other person) by reason of the appointment of a Receiver or for any other reason.
- 9.9 To the fullest extent allowed by law, any right, power or discretion conferred by this Deed (either expressly or impliedly) or by law on a Receiver may after this Security becomes enforceable be exercised by the Lender in relation to any Security Asset without first appointing a Receiver and notwithstanding the appointment of a Receiver.

10 Powers of Receiver

- 10.1 A Receiver has all of the rights, powers and discretions set out below in this Clause 10 in addition to those conferred on it by any law. This includes all the rights, powers and discretions conferred on a receiver (or a receiver and manager) under the Act and the Insolvency Act 1986, and shall have those rights, powers and discretions conferred on an administrative receiver under the Insolvency Act 1986 whether it is an administrative receiver or not.
- 10.2 If there is more than one Receiver holding office at the same time, each Receiver may exercise all of the powers conferred on a Receiver under this Deed individually and to the exclusion of any other Receiver.
- 10.3 A Receiver may:
 - 10.3.1 take immediate possession of, get in and realise any Security Asset;
 - 10.3.2 carry on any business of the Borrower in any manner it thinks fit;
 - 10.3.3 appoint and discharge managers, officers, agents, accountants, servants, workmen and others for the purposes of this Deed upon
 - 10.3.4 discharge any person appointed by the Borrower;

- 10.3.5 raise and borrow money either unsecured or on the security of any Security Asset and generally on any terms and for whatever purpose which it thinks fit;
- 10.3.6 sell, exchange, convert into money and realise any Security Asset by public auction or private contract and generally in any manner and on any terms which it thinks fit, in which case:
- (a) the consideration for any such transaction may consist of cash or non-cash consideration and any such consideration may be payable in a lump sum or by instalments spread over any period which it thinks fit; and
- (b) fixtures, other than landlord's fixtures, maybe severed and sold separately from the property containing them without the consent of the Borrower;
- 10.3.7 let any Security Asset for any term and at any rent (with or without a premium) which it thinks fit and may accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy of any Security Asset on any terms which it thinks fit (including the payment of money to a lessee or tenant on a surrender);
- 10.3.8 settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claim, account, dispute, question or demand with or by any person who is or claims to be a creditor of the Borrower or relating in any way to any Security Asset;
- 10.3.9 bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon any action, suit or proceedings in relation to any Security Asset which it thinks fit;
- 10.3.10 give a valid receipt for any moneys and execute any assurance or thing which may be proper or desirable for realising any Security Asset.
- 10.3.11 delegate its powers in accordance with this Deed:
- effect any repair or insurance and do any other act which the Borrower might do in the ordinary conduct of its business to protect or improve any Security Asset;
- (b) commence and/or complete any building operation or other works; and
- (c) apply for and maintain any planning permission, building regulation approval or any other authorisation, in each case as it thinks fit; and
- (d) do all other acts and things which it may consider necessary or desirable for realising any Security Asset or incidental or conducive to any of the rights, powers or discretions conferred on a Receiver under or by virtue of this Deed or law;
- (e) exercise in relation to any Security Asset all the powers, authorities and things which it would be capable of exercising if it were the absolute beneficial owner of that Security Asset; and
- (f) use the name of the Borrower for any of the above purposes.

11 Application of proceeds

- 11.1 All amounts from time to time received or recovered by the Lender or any Receiver pursuant to the terms of this Deed or in connection with the realisation or enforcement of all or any part of this Security shall be held by the Lender and applied in the following order of priority:
 - 11.1.1 in or towards payment of or provision for the Secured Liabilities in the following order:
 - (a) in payment of any sums owing to any Receiver or any Delegate;

- (b) in payment of all costs and expenses incurred by any Secured Party in connection with any realisation or enforcement of the Lender's Security in accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreements; and
- (c) in payment to the Lender in accordance with the Facility Agreements; and
- 11.1.2 in payment of the surplus (if any) to the Borrower or other person entitled to it.
- 11.2 This Clause 11 is subject to the payment of any claims having priority over this Security. This Clause 11 does not prejudice the right of the Lender to recover any shortfall from the Borrower.

12 Delegation

12.1 Power of Attorney

The Lender or any Receiver may, at any time, delegate by power of attorney or otherwise to any person for any period, all or any right, power, authority or discretion exercisable by it under this Deed.

12.2 Liability

Neither the Lender nor any Receiver shall be bound to supervise, or will be in any way responsible for any damages, costs or losses incurred by reason of any misconduct, omission or default on the part of any delegate or sub-delegate.

13 Further assurances

- 13.1 The Borrower shall promptly, at its own expense, take whatever action the Lender or a Receiver may require for:
 - 13.1.1 creating, perfecting or protecting any security over any Security Asset; or
 - 13.1.2 facilitating the realisation of any Security Asset, or the exercise of any right, power or discretion exercisable, by the Lender or any Receiver or any of their respective delegates or sub-delegates in respect of any Security Asset.
- 13.2 The action that may be required under paragraph (a) above includes (without limitation) :
 - 13.2.1 the execution of any mortgage, charge, transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance in respect of any asset, whether to the Lender, its nominee or any other person; or
 - 13.2.2 the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any filing or registration, which, in any such case, the Lender may consider necessary or desirable.

14 Power of Attorney

The Borrower, by way of security, irrevocably and severally appoints the Lender, each Receiver and any of their respective delegates or sub-delegates to be its attorney with the full power and authority of the Borrower to execute, deliver and perfect all deeds, instruments and other documents in its name and otherwise on its behalf and to do or cause to be done all acts and things, in each case, which may be required or which any attorney may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary for carrying out any obligation of the Borrower under or pursuant to this Deed or generally for enabling the Lender or any Receiver to exercise the respective powers conferred on them under this Deed or by law. The Borrower ratifies and confirms whatever any attorney does or purports to do under its appointment under this

15 Preservation of Security

If any discharge, release or arrangement (whether in respect of the obligations of the Borrower or any security for those obligations or otherwise) is made by the Lender in whole or in part on the basis of any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored in insolvency, liquidation, administration or otherwise, without limitation, the liability of the Borrower under this Deed will continue or be reinstated as if the discharge, release or arrangement had not occurred.

16 Miscellaneous

16.1 Continuing Security

This Security is a continuing security and shall extend to the ultimate balance of the Secured Liabilities for the Security Period regardless of any intermediate payment or discharge in whole or in part.

16.2 Tacking

The Lender shall perform its obligations under each Facility Agreement (including any obligation to make available further advances).

16.3 Assignments and transfers by the Borrower

The Borrower may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Deed without the prior consent of the Lender.

16.4 Assignments and transfers by the Lender

The Lender may assign any of its rights and transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Deed. The Borrower's consent is not required for any such assignment or transfer.

16.5 Notices to Third Parties

If the Lender so requests, the Borrower shall immediately serve notices (in the form required by the Lender) to all third parties specified by the Lender in respect of the charges and security assignments contained in this Deed including (but not limited to) notices to contract counterparties (including under any Relevant Agreement), account banks, insurers and tenants, and shall procure that each party to whom a notice is served returns to the Lender an acknowledgement in the form required by the Lender.

17 Release

- 17.1 The Lender is not obliged to consider a request by the Borrower for a partial release of the Security prior to the full and final redemption of the Secured Liabilities.
- 17.2 Any such release and the terms of that release are at the Lender's absolute discretion and subject to payment of any costs incurred by the Lender in dealing with such release (including, without limitation, the costs of any valuations required by the Lender and its legal fees.

18 Notices

- 18.1 All communications between the Parties under this Deed shall be in English.
- 18.2 Any notice from the Borrower to the Lender under or in connection with this Deed must be made in writing and sent to Lender by post or hand delivery to 19a Chorley Old Road, Bolton, BL1 3AD and shall not be deemed to be effective until the Lender has actually received it.

4

- 18.3 Any notice from the Lender to the Borrower under or in connection with this Deed must be made in writing and sent to the Borrower by post, hand delivery, email or text using the Borrower's contact details provided (and updated) under the terms of the Facility Agreements.
- 18.4 A notice sent by the Lender to the Borrower: (a) by post shall be deemed to be effective two Working Days after the date of posting (properly addressed and stamped); (b) by hand delivery, shall be deemed to be effective at the time of delivery; or (c) by email or text shall be deemed to be effective on the date of sending unless it is received after 5pm (UK time), in which case it shall be deemed only to become effective on the next Working Day.

19 Governing law and jurisdiction

. . . .

- 19.1 This Deed and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.
- 19.2 The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this Deed or any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this Deed) (a Dispute).
- 19.3 The Parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no Party will argue to the contrary.

This Deed has been executed as a deed and delivered by the Borrower on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

Schedule 1

е за - ,

Real Property

Property: Flat 459a, Park West, Edgware Road, London, W2 2QU Title number(s) NGL483988

Schedule 2

Definitions and interpretation

1	Definitions		
	In this Deed:		
	Act	means the	Law of Property Act 1925.
	Administrator	an adminis business a Deed.	strator appointed to manage the affairs, and property of the Borrower pursuant to this
	Authorisation	means an licence, ex	authorisation, consent, approval, resolution, cemption, filing, notarisation or registration.
	Charged Property	Asset and	Property included in the definition of Security , where the context so requires, includes any on that Property.
	Delegate	means ar the Lende	ly delegate, agent or attorney appointed by er or any Receiver.
	Event of Default	Facility A demand that Facil	ny event or circumstance specified in any greement which would entitle the Lender to payment of the balance outstanding under ity Agreement or to take enforcement action ne Borrower.
	Facility Agreement	means e under wh Borrowe	ach and any agreement and arrangement nich the Lender advances funds to the r.
	Finance Document	Docume	ny Facility Agreement, any Lender's Security nt and any "Finance Document" as defined in lity Agreement.
	Group	Subsidia	he Borrower and its Holding Company, its aries, and the Subsidiaries of its Holding ny, for the time being and from time to time.
	Guarantor	means a	any guarantor under any Finance Document.
	Holding Company	means a holding company within the meaning section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006.	
	Intellectual Property Rights	means:	
		(a)	any know-how, patent, trade mark, service mark, design, business name, topographical or similar right;
		(b)	any copyright or other intellectual property right;

· · · ·

	(c)	any interest (including byway of licence) in any of the above; or		
	(d)	any application for any of the above, in each case, whether registered or not.		
Investments	debe owne	means the Shares and all other shares, stocks, debentures, bonds or other securities or investments owned by the Borrower or held by any nominee, trustee, custodian or clearance system on its behalf.		
Legal Charge	creat speci	ns a legal charge entered into by the Borrower ing Security over its estates or interests in a ified Property (or Properties) to secure its ations under any of the Finance Documents.		
Lender's Security	in rav	means the Security created or expressed to be created in favour of the Lender pursuant to the Lender's Security Documents.		
Lender's Security Documents	means;			
	(a)	this Deed;		
	(b)	any Legal Charge; and		
	(c)	any other document entered into by the Borrower creating or expressed to create any Security over all or any part of its assets to secure the obligations of the Borrower under any of the Finance Document.		
Party	mean	s a party to this Deed.		
Property	means propei	means any freehold, leasehold or commonhold property.		
Receiver	means a receiver or receiver and manager or administrative receiver, in each case, appointed under this Deed.			
Relevant Agreement	means future:	s each and all of the following both present and		
	(a)	any development documents entered into with the approval of the Lender including without limitation all building contracts and appointments or related documents including any collateral warranties provided to the Borrower;		
	(b)	each contract in respect of any disposal of any Security Asset;		
	(c)	any lease of Charged Property;		
	(d)	any managing agents' agreements; and		

». 4

.

	(e) in eac	all other agreements in which the Borrower has an interest, h case including any guarantees or sureties id into in respect of them.		
Secured Liabilities	means all present and future obligations and liabilities (whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally or in any other capacity whatsoever) of the Borrower or any Guarantor, to any Secured Party, including, without limitation, any costs incurred by the Lender in enforcing the Lender's Security and all interest (including, without limitation, default interest) accruing in respect of those obligation or liabilities.			
Secured Parties	mean	s the Lender or any Receiver or Delegate.		
Security	secul or an	ns a mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other rity interest securing any obligation of any person y other agreement or arrangement having a ar effect.		
Security Asset	expre	ns any asset of the Borrower which is, or is essed to be, subject to any Securitý created by Deed.		
Security Period	and Liab	ns the period beginning on the date of this Deed ending on the date on which all the Secured ilities have been unconditionally and irrevocably and discharged in full.		
Shares	than any	ins all shares in any member of the Group (other i the Borrower) owned by the Borrower or held by nominee, trustee, custodian or clearance system ts behalf.		
Subsidiary	mea of th	ans a subsidiary within the meaning of section 1159 ne Companies Act 2006.		
Working Day	me bar	ans any day from Monday to Friday except for any ik or public holidays in England and Wales.		

2 Construction

e y

- 2.1 Unless a contrary indication appears, any reference in this Deed to:
 - 2.1.1 any Secured Party the Lender, the Borrower or any Party shall be construed so as to include its successors in title, permitted assigns and permitted transferees to, or of, its rights and/or obligations under the Finance Documents;
 - 2.1.2 an amendment includes a supplement, novation, extension (whether of maturity or otherwise), restatement, re-enactment or replacement (in each case, however fundamental and whether or not more onerous or involving any change in or addition to the parties to any agreement or document) and amended shall be construed accordingly;

2.1.3 assets includes present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description: 2.1.4 a clearance system means a person whose business is or includes the provision of clearance services or security accounts, or any nominee or depositary for that person: disposal includes a sale, transfer, assignment, grant, lease, licence, declaration of 2.1.5 trust or other disposal, whether voluntary or involuntary and dispose shall be construed accordingly; 2.1.6 a Finance Document or any other agreement or instrument is a reference to that Finance Document or other agreement or instrument as amended; a person includes any individual, firm, company, corporation, government, state or 2.1.7 agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium, partnership or other entity (whether or not having separate legal personality); 2.1.8 a regulation includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency, department or of any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation; any rights in respect of an asset includes: (a) all amounts and proceeds paid or payable; all rights to make any demand or claim; and (b) all powers, remedies, causes of action, security, guarantees and indemnities, in (c) each case, in respect of or derived from that asset; 2.1.9any share, stock, debenture, bond or other security or investment includes: any dividend, interest or other distribution paid or payable; (a) (b) any right, money or property accruing or offered at any time byway of redemption, substitution, exchange, bonus or preference, under option rights or otherwise; (c) any right against any clearance system; (d) any right under any custody or other agreement (including any right to require delivery up of any cash or other assets); and (e) any cash or securities account maintained by any custodian or other entity, in each case, in respect of that share, stock, debenture, bond or other security or investment; 2.1.10 the term this Security means any Security created by this Deed; an agreement, instrument or other document to which it is a party includes any 2.1.11 agreement, instrument or other document issued in the relevant person's favour or of which it otherwise has the benefit (in whole or in part); and a provision of law is a reference to that provision as amended or re-enacted. 2.1.12 Clause and Schedule headings are for ease of reference only and do not affect the interpretation of this Deed. Unless a contrary indication appears, a term used in any other Finance Document or in any notice given under or in connection with any Finance Document has the same meaning in that Finance Document or notice as in this Deed.

C . N

2.4 An Event of Default is continuing if it has not been remedied or waived.

2.2

2.3

- 2.5 Any covenant of the Borrower under this Deed (other than a payment obligation which has been discharged) remains in force during the Security Period.
- 2.6 The terms Of the other Finance Documents and of any other agreement or instrument between any Parties in relation to any Finance Document are incorporated in this Deed to the extent required to ensure that any purported disposition, or any agreement for the disposition, of any Property contained in this Deed is a valid disposition in accordance with section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.
- 2.7 If the Lender considers that an amount paid to it under a Finance Document is capable of being avoided or otherwise set aside on the liquidation or administration of the payer or otherwise, then that amount shall not be considered to have been irrevocably paid for the purposes of this Deed.
- 2.8 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to a Security Asset includes the proceeds of any disposal of that Security Asset.

3 Third party rights

- 3.1 Unless expressly provided to the contrary in a Finance Document, a person who is not a Party has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the Third Parties Act) to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Deed.
- 3.2 Notwithstanding any term of any Finance Document, the consent of any person who is not a Party is not required to rescind or vary this Deed at any time.
- 3.3 Any Receiver or any delegate or sub-delegate of the Lender or any Receiver may enforce and enjoy the benefit of any Clause which expressly confers rights on it, subject to paragraph (b) above and the provisions of the Third Parties Act.

Signatories

Executed as a deed by Old House Rentals Limited acting by a director in the presence of

Director

Nasser Salet Alguizy

Director Name

Witness signature

Witness name

Witness address

Witness occupation

Spyridon Leoussis Solicitor of the Senior Courts of England and Wales

NWL SOLICITORS LONDON RW6 2HL TEL: 020 7328 2929 FAX: 020 7625 2844 CX: 53656 WEST HAMPSTEAD

I confirm that I was physically present when Nasser Saleh Alanizy signed this Deed.

Witness Signature

.

.

·

. .

.

.

. .

Signatories

Executed as a deed by Autarky Capital Limited acting by its attorney Stephen Henry Evans-Jones pursuant to a power of attorney

Autarky Capital Limited

.....

Signature in the name of Autarky Capital Limited

Signature of Attorney

MATTHEW ROYCE

FLAHIVE LAW LIMITED SUITE C 63A ALDERLEY ROAD WILMSLOW, CHESHIRE SK9 1NZ ADMIN ASSISTANT

Witness signature

Witness name

Witness address

Witness occupation

I confirm that I was physically present when Stephen Henry Evans-Jones signed this Deed.

Witness Signature

FLAHIVE LA'	TED
SUIT	
63A ALDER)AD
WILMSLOW,	SHIRE
SK9	
A Rold C	
NICOL	

I CERTIFY THIS TO BE A TRUE COPY OF THE ORIGINAL.